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Archival Sources

• McClintock Collection, Arizona Room, 
Phoenix Public Library, Burton Barr 
Branch

• Arizona Historical Society, MSM 582, 
KKK Files
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Hugh E. Laird
Tempe History Museum 
1991.24.6
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McClintock Collection, 
Arizona Room, 
Phoenix Public Library



Estmer W. Hudson, Tempe Double Butte Cemetery
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Lowell E. Redden and 
Byron A. Redden
Tempe Double Butte Cemetery
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Harvey S. Harelson
Tempe History Museum 
1987.26.5
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County Recorder’s Office

From College View 
subdivision plat map

(Filed with Recorder’s 
Office January 18, 1945)



County Recorder’s Office

From College View subdivision plat map

College View plat map officially approved by Tempe City Council 
on January 11, 1945 (signed by Mayor W. W. Cole)



Tempe Daily News

September 30, 1954

Early mention of future site of 
Hudson Park 



County Recorder’s Office

From Hudson Manor Unit 4 
subdivision plat map

(Filed with Recorder’s 
Office September 8, 1954)



Land acquired by City of Tempe – 1954

Officially named Hudson Park by City – 1960

Named after – Estmer “E. W.” Hudson



Land acquired by City of Tempe – October 19, 1973

Parks & Rec Board recommends Redden Park name to City Manager –
June 12, 1974

Named after – James Redden Family



Records found in City Clerk’s 
Office, City of Tempe

Recommendation to name 
Redden Park approved by 

Parks and Recreation Board 
– June 12, 1974



Records found in City Clerk’s Office, 
City of Tempe

Document indicates location of 
Byron A. Redden’s farm, which is half 
a mile north of park site in question.   



Portion of Maricopa County 
Landownership Map (T.1 S., R.4 
E.) from Arizona State Library, 
Archives and Public Records

Map indicates Byron A. Redden’s
farm along Guadalupe Road, half 

a mile north of park site 
(identified by red mark). 



Land acquired by City of Tempe – Unknown

Officially named Harelson Park by City – 1987

Named after – Harvey Harelson



Tempe Daily News

June 18, 1988

Announcement of Harelson Park 
dedication, scheduled for June 20 



Laird Street name origin:

“Hugh, and brothers Bill and Claude subdivided the family cotton 
farm in 1952 and built house[s] in Laird Estates.  Hugh named 2 
streets in Laird Estates after his grandchildren.  Laird Street for Laird 
Simpson and Hugh E. Laird, II.  Elna Rae Street for his granddaughter, 
Elna Rae Simpson Zeilinger.”

Recollections of Elna Rae Simpson Zeilinger, December 20, 2006.  
On file in Laird family biographical folder at Tempe History Museum.  



County Recorder’s Office

From Laird Estates 
subdivision plat map

(Filed with Recorder’s Office 
November 3, 1955)



County Recorder’s Office

From Laird Estates 
subdivision plat map

Laird Estates plat map officially approved by Tempe City Council on 
October 13, 1955 (signed by Mayor Hugh. E. Laird)



County Recorder’s Office

From Western Villages 
subdivision plat map

(Filed with Recorder’s 
Office October 28, 1958)

Officially approved by 
Tempe City Council on 

October 23, 1958 (signed by 
Mayor Hugh. E. Laird)



Laird Street alignment in Victory Acres – ca.1975

Laird Street did not exist in the Victory Acres subdivision 
until the Neighborhood Development project was initiated 

(the project began in 1973)  



No specific date(s) or any other details associated with the 
process/approval for naming this section of Laird Street in Victory Acres is 

known at this time.  

Beyond the original sections of Laird Street between McKemy Street and 
Priest Drive, there are no other known alignments named Laird Street in 

Tempe.


